



General Purposes Committee

Date: Monday, January 18, 2021

Place: Council Chambers

Richmond City Hall

Present: Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair

Councillor Chak Au

Councillor Carol Day (by teleconference)
Councillor Alexa Loo (by teleconference)
Councillor Bill McNulty (by teleconference)
Councillor Linda McPhail (by teleconference)
Councillor Harold Steves (by teleconference)
Councillor Michael Wolfe (by teleconference)

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded

That the minutes of the meeting of the General Purposes Committee held on January 5, 2021, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION

1. UPDATE: INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM
- MINORU PLACE ACTIVITY CENTRE CONVERSION TO ARTS
CENTRE

(File Ref. No. 10-6000-01) (REDMS No. 6582221 v. 4)

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that staff have been in discussion with BC Housing on potential opportunities to extend use of the site. Also, staff have updated community arts groups on the grant process and will provide Council with a memorandum on the matter.

It was moved and seconded

That Option 1, to delay tendering of the Minoru Place Activity Centre Conversion to an Arts Centre, as described in the staff report titled "Update: Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Minoru Place Activity Centre Conversion to Arts Centre," dated January 6, 2021 from the Director, Facilities and Project Development and the Director, Arts, Culture and Heritage Services be approved.

CARRIED

2. INVESTING IN CANADA INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM - COVID-19 RESILIENCE INFRASTRUCTURE STREAM: THOMPSON COMMUNITY CENTRE AND HALL INFRASTRUCTURE RENEWALS

(File Ref. No. 10-6000-01) (REDMS No. 6577995 v. 5)

It was moved and seconded

- (1) That the submission to the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream, requesting funding of up to \$900,000 as outlined in the staff report titled, "Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream: Thompson Community Centre and Hall Infrastructure Renewals," dated December 18, 2020 from the Director, Facilities and Project Development be endorsed;
- (2) That the Chief Administrative Officer and General Manager, Engineering and Public Works be authorized to enter into funding agreements with the government for the aforementioned project should it be approved for funding, as outlined in the staff report titled, "Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream: Thompson Community Centre and Hall Infrastructure Renewals," dated December 18, 2020 from the Director, Facilities and Project Development; and
- (3) That a capital project in the amount of \$900,000 be considered in the 2021 budget process as described in the staff report titled "Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream: Thompson Community Centre and Hall Infrastructure Renewals" dated December 18, 2020 from the Director, Facilities and Project Development.

The question on motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to utilizing energy efficient equipment in the community centre.

The question on the motion was then called and it was **CARRIED**.

COUNCILLOR CAROL DAY

3. MENSTRUAL EQUITY INITIATIVE

(File Ref. No. 6599125)

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) implementing the initiative as a pilot project with a one year review, (ii) distributing feminine products in most City facilities, and (iii) the budget required and estimated timeline to implement the proposed initiative.

Laura Greenwood, Richmond resident, spoke in support of implementing the proposed initiative, noting that other Metro Vancouver municipalities have proceeded with similar programs and that feedback on the matter was positive.

Karina Reid, Richmond resident, referred to her submission (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 1), and spoke in support of implementing the proposed initiative, noting that, in her opinion, such a program would assist the city's low income residents and homeless population.

As a result of the discussion, the following **referral motion** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That the menstrual equity initiative be referred to staff to examine implementing a one year pilot program for 21 civic facilities, and report back.

The question on the referral motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to defining the appropriate City facilities where feminine products would be distributed and similar programs implemented in other municipalities.

Mayor Brodie noted that as a result of the discussion, there was agreement from the mover and the seconder that the referral motion be amended to the following:

- (1) That the menstrual equity initiative be referred to staff to provide free menstrual products in most civic facilities, including an education plan, and report back with a budget; and
- (2) That the proposed initiative be reviewed one year after implementation.

The question on the amended referral motion was not called as a further amendment to the referral motion to change the distribution of feminine products in "most civic facilities" to "all staffed civic facilities" was introduced, but did not receive a seconder.

The question on the referral motion, as amended, was then called and it was **CARRIED**.

COUNCILLOR MICHAEL WOLFE

4. CAT EDUCATION AND POLICY

(File Ref. No. 6599131)

Cllr. Wolfe spoke on improving cat awareness and education for cat owners. He expressed concern with regard to cats hunting local wildlife and potential negative effects to the bird population, as well as disease prevention. He suggested that the City examine options to update the City's bylaws and website.

It was moved and seconded

That Council endorse the following resolution to modernize our cat related bylaws and provide options for enhanced cat owner education campaigns:

The City of Richmond will work to reduce the number of bird and other wildlife-related fatalities from the teeth and claws of domestic cats. This includes a referral for a staff report to provide education for cat owners and revisions to the City website and bylaws.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to (i) examining alternative options for rodent control, (ii) retrieving Richmond-specific data related to cats, and (iii) coordinating with local animal welfare agencies such as RAPS and the BCSPCA.

The question on the motion was then called and it was **DEFEATED** with Mayor Brodie, and Cllrs. Au, Loo, McNulty and McPhail opposed.

Discussion ensued with regard to consulting with local animal welfare agencies, and as a result the following **referral motion** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That cat education and policy be referred to staff to work with the BCSPCA and RAPS to recommend the dissemination of cat education materials, and report back.

CARRIED

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded That the meeting adjourn (4:46 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the General Purposes Committee of the Council of the City of Richmond held on Monday, January 18, 2021.

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie Chair

Evangel Biason Legislative Services Associate

Schedule 1 to the Minutes of the General Purposes Committee meeting of Richmond City Council held on Monday, January 18, 2021.

From:

Karina Reid < karinareid@outlook.com>

Sent:

January 15, 2021 10:16 AM

To:

MayorandCouncillors

Subject:

Menstrual equity

Attachments:

Richmond City Council letter - menstrual equity.docx

Categories:

- TO: MAYOR & EACH COUNCILLOR / FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE

City of Richmond Security Warning: This email was sent from an external source outside the City. Please do not click or open attachments unless you recognize the source of this email and the content is safe.

Good morning Mayor Brodie and City Council,

Please find my attached letter.

Thank you,

Karina

Karina Reid
karinareid@outlook.com
https://twitter.com/KarinaReid38
https://www.facebook.com/KarinaReid38
604-318-5353



January 14, 2021

Dear Richmond City Council,

As a Richmond resident I am writing to ask for your support to implement free menstrual products in our civic facilities. Periods are a fact of life and menstrual products can be expensive. Richmond has one of the highest child poverty rates and residents and families living in poverty often struggle to afford the basic products they need. Imagine having to choose between food or menstrual products?

In 2019, the provincial government of British Columbia issued a new policy requiring that all BC schools provide access to free menstrual products in school washrooms by the end of 2019. There are several cities that have already created free Menstrual Products in Civic Facilities Washrooms such as Coquitlam, Vancouver, Victoria, North Vancouver, Burnaby, and the list continues to grow.

Vancouver City Council also has a City of All Women, <u>Women's Equity Strategy 2018-2028</u>. This is also something I would like to see Richmond City Council create. This pandemic has pushed so many women out of the workforce, and we must create a strategy to support women. Periods should not hold anyone back, period. Therefore, we must support menstrual equity.

Lack of access to menstrual products and stigma surrounding menstruation should no longer be able to act as barriers to the full and equal participation of all community members in our city spaces.

The Period Promise initiative by United Way mobilizes local citizens to be a part of the solution. I would the City of Richmond to be a part of this solution.

Thank you for your consideration and support,

Karina Reid